
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  May 10, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 
 

PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 
 
 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM May 3, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. POLK COUNTY ORDER NO. 23-07 – Valerie Patoine 

  8. LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS 
• Susan Fleming, 20 years 
• Sara Bischel, 15 years 
• Robert Caudill, 15 years 
• Justin Reed, 15 years 

 
 
   

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a)   Polk County Affirmative Action Plan and Equal Opportunity Employer Policy 
 (Lynn Hall, Human Resources) 
 

(b)   Polk County Ordinance No. 23-01 (Michael Burns, Community Development) 
 
(c) Polk County Contract No. 23-63 (Todd Whitaker, Public Works) 

 
 
 
                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
 
 
 
 
 
    



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

    
 
   POLK COUNTY PUBLIC MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

GUIDELINE FOR CITIZENS 
***************************** 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 
Regular meetings of the Polk County Board of Commissioners convene at 9 a.m. each Wednesday morning. Any 
person wishing to bring a matter before the Board at one of these meetings may do so by mailing or delivering 
written notice, concisely describing the nature of the item, to the Board of Commissioners, Polk County Courthouse, 
Dallas, Oregon 97338, by noon on the preceding Thursday. Unless otherwise announced, meetings are held in the 
Main Conference Room of the Courthouse. 

***************************** 
APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 

 
The Board sets aside a time at each regular meeting for comment by the public on subjects not appearing on the 
Agenda. Individuals may come forward and make any statement they wish, but not to exceed three (3) minutes in 
length, except as is required to give concise answers to questions from Board members. If the subject will require 
a lengthier presentation, or merits inclusion as an item on the Agenda of a future meeting, the Board shall schedule 
it accordingly. 

***************************** 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT 

Land Use 
 
1. Chairman opens hearing. 
 a. Reading of hearing request or appeal statement. 
 b. Call for abstentions (ex parte contact or conflict of interest). 
2. County staff presents background, summary and its recommendation (20-minute limit). 
3. Applicant (Appellant) presents his/her case (15-minute limit). 
4.  Public testimony. Note that all testimony and evidence must be directed toward the applicable factual and 

legal criteria as identified in the record and/or during this hearing. Do not repeat previous testimony. Simply 
note for the record that you are in agreement with that earlier testimony. Your time to present testimony is 
limited. FAILURE TO RAISE AN ISSUE IN THIS HEARING, IN PERSON OR BY LETTER, OR FAILURE 
TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPECIFICITY TO AFFORD THE BOARD AN OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND 
TO THE ISSUE MAY PRECLUDE LATER APPEAL TO LUBA ON THAT ISSUE. 

 a. Individuals in favor of the application or appeal. 
 b. Individuals against the application or appeal. At the discretion of the Chairman, an attorney, 

consultant, or other designated representative of two or more individuals may be allowed the 
combined time for each represented individual who does not speak, not to exceed 20 minutes. The 
Chairman may require proof of designation. 

5. Rebuttal by Applicant (Appellant) (10-minute limit). 
6. Questions from Board (discussion limited to individuals questioned by the Board).  
 a. Staff. 
 b. Applicant (Appellant). 
 c. Individuals testifying. 
7. Chairman closes hearing and announces closing of Record. 
8. Chairman announces date for deliberation and decision. 
9. The Board's decision is deemed the final decision of Polk County. It may be appealed to LUBA within 21 

days of its issuance in written form. The address and phone number of LUBA may be obtained from the Polk 
County Community Development Department and will also appear on the Notice of Decision which will be 
mailed to all persons who testify, submit comments, or print their name and address on the hearing 
attendance sheet at the back of the hearing room. 

 
 



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  May 10, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 
 

PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 
 
 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM May 3, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. POLK COUNTY ORDER NO. 23-07 – Valerie Patoine 

  8. LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS 
• Susan Fleming, 20 years 
• Sara Bischel, 15 years 
• Robert Caudill, 15 years 
• Justin Reed, 15 years 

 
 
   

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a)   Polk County Affirmative Action Plan and Equal Opportunity Employer Policy 
 (Lynn Hall, Human Resources) 
 

(b)   Polk County Ordinance No. 23-01 (Michael Burns, Community Development) 
 
 
 
                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
 
 
 
 
 
    
    



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES May 3, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Pope and Commissioner Mordhorst were present. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Discussion: 
Due to Valerie Patoine being out ill, the agenda has been modified to remove and reschedule 
item # 7 in regards to Polk County Order No. 23-07 until next Wednesday. 
 
Greg Hansen stated that he is adding Polk County Resolution No. 23-05 to the agenda for 
discussion. 

 
MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS MODIFIED, 

COMMISSIONER GORDON SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS 
MODIFIED. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE QUORUM.  
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF April 26, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, TO 
APPROVE THE MINUTES OF April 26, 2023. 

     
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE QUORUM. 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON SECONDED, TO 
APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE QUORUM. 
 

  
 
7. POLK COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 23-05 
 Greg Hansen, Admin Officer, provided some background information on Resolution 23-05 

in regards to amending the Master Fee Schedule that was approved last year in Resolution 
No. 22-08 . Mr. Hansen provided the options of approving this Resolution or waiting until 



May 3, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

July 2023 when we adopt a new Master Fee Schedule. Commissioner Pope stated that he 
asked for this to be a separate item so that he could ask some questions on the record. 
Commissioner Pope asked who pays for these increases. Mr. Hansen stated it comes from 
the Treasury, Federally, and from income taxes. Commissioner Pope stated that he wanted 
to make sure that the public understood that this is not coming from property taxes or the 
General Fund. Mr. Hansen stated that the Behavioral Health Fund is funding solely from 
the State and not from the General Fund.  

 
MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED TO APPROVE AND SIGN RESOLUTION NO. 23-

05, COMMISSIONER GORDON SECONDED, TO APPROVE AND SIGN 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-05. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE QUORUM. 

 
 
 
 
8. COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS UPDATE: 
 Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director, provided an update for the Board for the 

Community Corrections Department. Mrs. Merritt’s update focused on the Adult 
Parole/Probation department. The update highlighted their current staffing levels and 
caseloads, the state funded population, Community Corrections Review (CCR), highlights from 
their most recent review, and their departments current focus. The Commissioners asked 
questions in regards to the data that was shared on the employment rates and Mrs. Merritt 
answered their questions. Commissioner Pope stated that he would like to get more of a 
breakdown at a later time in the numbers that were provided for the treatment goals. The 
Commissioners asked about recovering from COVID and what that looks like. Mrs. Merritt stated 
what they are currently focusing on with working with people and eliminate any barriers, but 
also make sure that they are meeting the requirements. Commissioner Pope asked a clarifying 
question about the current 3-year Recidivism rate data. Mrs. Merritt answered his question.  

  
   
 
      
 

 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

a) Polk County Contract No. 23-60, Jackson County IGA 
(Dean Anderson, Information Services) 
 

b) Polk County Contract No. 23-61, Yamhill County IGA 
     (Dean Anderson, Information Services) 
 

c) New Job Specification & Wage, Engineer Survey Tech 1/Emergency 
Management Coordinator 
(Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director) 

 
 

There was no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the 
meeting at 9:55 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



May 3, 2023 
Page 3 

 

  

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: May 3, 2023 



Porr CouNrY DISTRICT ATTORF{EY

^
(.( tt \

z\ /'

POLK COTINTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS' OREGON 97338.3177

CRJMINAL DIVISION * (503) 623-926E
SUPPORT ENFORCDMENT * (503) 623-9269

vIcTIMASSISTANCE * (s03) 623-9268
I'AX * (503) 621-7556

AARONFELTON
DistriotAttomey

lelt o n, aaro n@co. p olk. o t: rt s

April24,2023

HAND DELIVERED

Board of Commissioners

Polk County Courthouse
Dallas OR 97338

Re: Order 23-07

Dear Board of Commissioners:

I have reviewed the proposed order 23-07 and the Board Memorandum prepared by Katlyn D'Agostini,

Tax Collector for polk County. Pursuant to ORS 3LtJgO,l concur in her recommendation that the Board

of Commissioners approve Order 23-07 and cancel the uncollectible property taxes as set forth in the

order.

D. Felton
District AttorneY

Katlyn D'Agostini
Tax Collector

Cc:



MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Katlyn D'Agostini, Tax Collector

DATE: May 10,2023

SUBJECT: Write off unpaid prope(y tax on manufactured structure (Order 23-07)

Wcdnesday Consent: May 10, !Q!!

RECOMMENDATION:

Board of Commissioners approve the request to cancel personal property taxes in the

amount of $57,92 on tax account number 432366.

ISSUE:

The ta,x oftice has been notified by the assessor's office that the manufactured structure

located at 573 E Ellendale Ave #57 Dallas in Oregon is no longer on the propefi as of
August 24,2021and verified it was tom down in 2018. ORS 3l1.790 requires that the Tax

Collector petition the Board of Commissioners for an order cancelling the unpaid propefty

taxes. We have determined this home was destroyed and deem the taxes as uncollectible.

DISCUSSION/ALTERNATIVES :

In the past, we have occasionally received requests from mobile park managers and

landowners for write off of unpaid property taxes on abandoned or destroyed homes when

the allowed expenses of rent, storage and disposition costs exceed the sales price amount.

Thess taxes have been written off. 'lhese requests are infrequent and usually small.

ALTERNATIVES:

The following are altematives:

l. Cancel the properfy tax on these accounts.

2. Don't cancel the property tax on these accounts.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Loss of tax income of $57.92, accumulated interest of $42.13 Approximately l4o/o of this is

loss to Polk County, with the remaining share being lost by the other taxing districts.



Account 432366

Appraiser verified that the 1961 manufactured structure is no longer on the property as of August 24,

2021. Verified torn down in 2018



STATEMENT OF TAX ACCOUNT
POLK COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR

850 MAIN ST

DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3184
(s03) 623-9264

3-May-2023

MORRIS BRANDY N glhL
I4440 DEARBORN AVE
SOUI'II BELOIT IL 6IO8O-9478

'lax Accounl /l
Ascourrt Stelus

Roll 't'ypc

Situs Address

412366 Lender Namc

Loan Number
Propcrty lD 0?01 07528DC01502
Intcrcsl To May 3,2023

MS
573 g til.r.FrNDAt.lr nvu 5? l)Al.l-AS, oR 97338

Tax Summary
Tcx
Yeat Type

Trx 'l'otrl Current lnteresl Discount
Aveilable

Due

Due Due Due Due Dnte

2022
2021

2020

20t9
201 E

20t7
2016
201 5

20t4
2013

2012

201 I

2010

2009

2008

2AA1

2006

2005

20a4

2044

2003

2003

2002

200 I

2000

2000

t999

I 999

I 998

1997

1996

1995

I 994

1993

1992

1991

1990

1989

AI)VALOItEM
Al)VALOREM

ADVAI,OITEM

ADVAI,OI{F:M
AI)VN.I.ORHM

AI)VAI,OREM
ADVAI,ORI]M
ADVAI,ORF:M

ADVALORI]M

AI)VNLOREM
ADVAI,OI{EM

ADVALOI{EM
ADVALOREM
ADVALOREIVI

ADVALOREM

ADVALOREM
ADVAI,ORIIM

ADVAI,OREM
ADVALORIM
FI]!-

ADVAI,ORiJM
I;EI
ADVALOREM
ADVAI,ORF]M

ADVAT,ORIIM

Fltc
ADVALORHM

FEE

ADVAI,0REM

ADVAI,ORNM
ADVAI,ORF-M

ADVALOITEM

NDVALORHM
ADVALOREM
ADVAT,ORI]M

ADVAI,0RIIM
ADVAI,ORI]M
ADVAI,OREM

$0.00

$0.00

$ 14.74

$ I 5.62

$23.4 t

$25,94

$20.34

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

s0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

s0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0,00

$o.oo

ti I 0.53

$ 10.01

$l3.6r
$ r3.80

$9,97

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

tio.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$4.21

$5.6t

$9.80

$ 12. l4

$ 10.37

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

$0 00

$0,00

xi0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0,00

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

.s0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

1i0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

s0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

s0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

s0.00

x;0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$ r 0.53

$ 10.01

xi 13.5 r

$ 13.80

$9.97

$ l 0,66

$9.s2

$9.7s

$l0.sl
$ l 0.7s

$l l.s7

$r2.44

$ 10.91

$ I 0.52

s I 0.54

$ r 8.6?

$?8. I 5

$47.00

$79.30

$4?.00

s76.67

$78.60

s76.47

$0.00

$7s,40

$47.00

$63.98

$69. I 9

$71.09

s71.24

$54.59

$50. l0
$l1.79

$ I l.8l
$ r3.88

$ 15.88

Nov 15,2022

Nov 15,2021

Nov I 5, 2020

Nov t5,2019

Nov 15,20111

Nov I 5, 201 7

Nov 15,2016

Nov 15,2015

Nov I 5,2014

Nov 15,2013

Nov I 5, 2012

Nov I 5, 201 I

Nov 15,2010

Nov 15,2009

Nov t5,200S

Nov I 5, 2007

Nov I 5, 2006

Nov I 5, 2005

Nov 15,2004

l;eb 23, 2005

Nov 15,2003

Nov I 5, 2003

Nov 15,2002

Nov I 5, 200 I

Nov I 5, 2000

l;cb 27 ,2001
Nov 15,1999

Mar 28,2000
Nov t5, 1998

Dcc 15,1997

Nov 15,1996

Nov 15, 1995

Nov 15,1994

Nov 15, 1993

Nov 15,1992

Nov 15, l99l
Nov 15,1990

Nov 15, 1989



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FOR POLK COUNTY, OREGON 

In the matter of ) 
Canceling Uncollectible ) 
Personal Property Taxes on a ) 
Manufactured Structure ) 

ORDER NO. 23-07 

Whereas, ORS 311. 790 authorizes the Board of Commissioners by order to cancel 
taxes on personal property upon the advice of the Tax Collector and District Attorney 
which are for any reason wholly uncollectible; and 

Whereas, these officers and the Board have examined the ensuing list of such 
taxes and have determined that they are uncollectible; now therefore, 

IT IS ORDERED: 

Pursuant to ORS 311.790, the following account, representing taxes on personal 
property are canceled as uncollectible: 

Name and Account Number 
Joe & Brandy Morris 
573 E Ellendale Ave #57 
Dallas, OR 97338 
Tax ID 432366 

TOTAL CANCELLATION 

May 10, 2023 

Tax Year{s) 
2016-2020 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Jeremy Gordon Chairman 

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 

Craig Pope, Commissioner 

Tax Amount 
$ 57.92 

$ 57.92 



Approved as to Form

Morgan Smith, County Counsel



HUMAN RESOURCBS
POLK COUNTY POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 9?338-3174

(503) 623-1888 *FAx (s03) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Lynn Hall, Human Resources Analyst II

DATE: Api114,2023

SUBJECT: Polk County Affirmative Action Plan and Equal Opportunity Employer Policy

Wednesday Consent - May 10r2023

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board of Commissioners re-adopt the Affirmative Action Plan and Equal Opportunity Employer Policy

ISSUE:
Shall the Board re-adopt the Affirmative Action Plan and Equal Opportunity Employer Policy?

BACKGROUND:
The Affirmative Action Plan and Equal Opportunity Employer policy must be re-affirmed each year by the
Board of Commissioners. These policies are required under Federal law. It is necessary for the County to certify
these policies have been formulated and posted in a conspicuous location.

DISCUSSION / ALTERNATIVES:
1. The Board may adopt the policy and be in compliance with the law.
2. The Board may not adopt the policy.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact.



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * p411-45, OREGON 97338-3174

(503) 623-1888 *FAx (s03) 623-1889

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

Policy Statement:

Polk County is an Equal Opportunity Employer and, as such, states its commitment to providing equal
employment opportunities to all persons in matters affecting, but not limited to, recruitment, employment,
compensation, benefits, promotions, training, discipline, transfer and layoff practices without regard to a

person's race, color, religion, national origin, gender, age, marital or family status, sexual orientation,
association, disability, injured worker, or military status (except where age or non-disability are bonafide
occupational qualifi cations).

Polk County does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to or treatment of
ernployment in its programs or activities.

Polk County is committed to providing all employees with a work environment free of discrimination or
harassment of any kind.

1Oth day of May 2023

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Jeremy Gordon, Commrssroner

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Craig Pope, Commissioner



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3174

(503) 623-1888 * FAx (503) 623-1889

POLK COUNTY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN

1. In recruitment and selection, the public shall be informed of Polk County's affirmative action policy

a, All recruiting announcements shall be posted on the County website and the official bulletin board
of the County. In addition, recruiting announcernents may be published as necessary to assure

reaching qualifi ed applicants.

b. A11 recruiting announcements and advertisements shall include the words "An Equal Opportunity
Employer" as a statement of Polk County's policy.

Personnel shall ensure that all selection processes use valid, job-related criteria in hiring new employees

and in promoting and retaining existing employees.

Personnel shall review minimum qualifications of the recruitment to ensure that the knowledge, skills,
ability, experience, and education requirements are related to successful performance on the job.

Personnel shall encourage upward mobility of Polk County employees and be available to help
employees prepare for advancement.

5. A copy of this policy shall be posted in the County buildings and available to all employees

fAdopted by the Board of Commissioners per Resolution No. 7I-04, dated April 27 , 2011 .l

2

J

4



Porr CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

POLK COUNTY
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338
(503) 623-9237

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Michael Bums, Assistant Planner

May 5,2023

Ordinance 23-01: Update to Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapters 136, 138, and
t77.

Consent Calendar - May 10,2023

RECO ATION:

Planning staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners adopt Ordinance 23-01 in order to
bring Polk County ZoningOrdinance (PCZO) Chapters 136, 138, and 177, into compliance with
changes found in State law.

ISSUE:

Should Polk County adopt changes to the PCZO in order to be consistent with changes found in
State law?

BACKGROUND:

Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 197.646 states that when new land use statutes, statewide land
use planning goals, or rules implementing the statutes or the goals are enacted, counties must
eith6r adopiamendments to their local code to implement the changes to State law or apply those
changes directly to land use applications. Currently the Planning Division applies certain
sections of ORS and Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) directly to land use applications. The
proposed legislative amendment is intended to conform the Polk County Z9\ing,Ordinance . .

iYCZOl to land use regulations found in State law. Below is a summary of the changes found in
State law and the implementing Chapters of the PCZO:

o House Bill (HB) 2225 (2019) amended ORS 215.750, amended new forest dwelling
standards. These amended criteria apply to forest "template" dwellings within Polk
County's Farm/Forest (FF) and Farm/Forest Overlay (FFO) zones (PCZO Chapter 138),
and the Timber Conservation (TC) zone (PCZO Chapter 177).

o HB 3024 (2019) amended ORS 215.283, which changed the replacement dwelling
criteria within the Exclusive Farm Use (EFU), FF and FFO Zoning Districts.

Additionally, an amendment to OAR 660-006-0025 permits the replacement of dwellings
that were destroyed by the wildfires in the past 60 months within the TC zone.

o Currently,PCZO 136.040(Z) and 138.050(K) permit churches within the EFU, FF and
FFO Zoning Districts, but they are subject to an administrative review land use
application. ORS 215.283(l)(a) and ORS 215.441 amended criteria for churches, making
it clear that churches are outright permitted, but are subject to certain development
standards. The amendments made to implement ORS 2I5.441are not intended to adopt
additional development standards for churches, but are to provide clarification that



churches are subject to the existing development standards, such as parking, salitation
i"q"G-."ts, etd. The developmeit standards would be subject to a ministerial review.

o HB 3616 (2003) repealed oRS 215.800 to 215.808, which permitted wildlife Habitat
Conservatiott und Munag.-ent plans for special assessment programs inPCZO Chapters

136 and 138.

o OAR 660-006-0029,660-006-0035, and 660-006-0040 amend siting standards for
dwellings in forest zones inPCZO Chapters 138 and 177.

Staff has prepared the proposed amendme{s to Pqzg^Chapters 136, 138, and 177 that reflect
these changei, which are included as Exhibits A-C of Ordinance23'01.

qCZO IIL}|| allows Ordinance text amendments to be adopted as part of the Board of
Commissioner's Consent agenda when the sole purpose of the amendments is to conform the

Ordinance to new requiremints in statute. On Januiry lT,l\Qrthe Board of Commissioners

JireJiO staff to prepare an Ordinance to adopt updat-es toP,CZO Chapters 136, 138,-andl77.
Stuff prouiaed n^otiie of the proposed text amendments to the Oregon Dgpgrtggnt of Land
Conservation and Developminf (DLCU) on February 22,20?3. On April 6,?023,DLCD
orovided written "o--"titr 

back to stafi which were considered as part of the updates reflected
in B"iiiUitr n-C. Aaopting Ordinance23'-01would bring the PCZO into conformance with the

changes to ORS 215 and OAR 660-006.

ALTERNATIVES:

1

2

J

Adopt Ordinance 23-01;

Direct staff to amend Ordinance 23-0I and return it to the Board for adoption; or

Other.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Fiscal impacts to Polk County include staff time necessary to prepare an ordinance and updated

sections of the PCZO.

2



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR
PoLK COUNTY, OREGON

In the matter of Legislative Amendment
LA23-01; updating the Polk CountY
ZoningOrdinance Chapters 1 36, I 38,
and 177 to be consistent with changes to
State law.

THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Sec. 1. That Polk County amends Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 136 Exclusive
Farm Use (EFU), as shown on Exhibit A.

Sec. 2. That Polk County amends Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 138

ORDINANCE NO. 23.0I

WHEREAS, House Bill (HB) 2225 (2019) amended Orego! Revised Statute (OlS)
215.750;,which revised new forest d*elling itand6rds. Theqe amended criteria applY to forest
;t"-plui." dwellings within Polk County'JF_arm/Forest (FDard Farm/Foretoverlay-(FFO) .

,or.i fiCZO Chapier 138), and the Timber Conservatiori 1fC; zone (PCZO Chapter 177); and

WHEREAS, HB 3024 (2019) amended ORS 215.283,which change{the.replacement
dwelling criteria witirin the Exciusive Farm Use (EFU),_F! an{ ffO !-gn[e ?l*tricts.
Aaaitioiuily, an amendment to Oregon Administiativ6 Rule (gA+) 660-006-0025 permits the

i.piu".*."l of dwellings that were iestroyed by the wildfires in the past 60 months within the

TC zone; and

WHEREAS, Currently,PCZO 136.040(Z) and 138.050(K) permit churches within the

EFU, FF and FFO ZoningDi#icts, but they are subject to an administrative review land use

uppfi*tio". ORS 215.28i(l)(a) and ORS 2i5.441 amended criteria for churches, making it _.
ciear that churches are outi'ifirt permitted, but are subject to certain developryent standards. The

amendments made to impleirent OnS 2I5.441are not intended to adopt additional
O.u"iop-"nt standards for churches, bu! are to provide clarification that churches are subject to

the exiiting development standards, such as parking, sanitation requirements, etc. The

development standards would be subject to a ministerial review; and

WHEREAS, HB 3616 (2003) repealed ORS 215.800 to 215.808, which permitted

Wildlife Habitat Conservation and lVlanagement plans for special assessment programs in
PCZO Chapters 136 and 138; and

WHEREAS, PCZO Chapters 138 and 177 are amended to provide consistency with
OAR 660-006-0029,660-006-0035, and 660-006-0040; and

WHEREAS, Polk County ZoningOrdinance Section lllzl5 permits Ordinance text
amendments that refiect changesin statelaw without holding a publichear_ing^or adopting
findings, and allows these updates to be adopted without going through Polk County's
legislative amendment process; now therefore,

)
)
)
)
)

ORDINANCE NO. 23-OI



FarmlForest (F/F), as shown on Exhibit B.

Sec. 3. That Polk County amends Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 177 Timber
Conservation (TC), as shown on Exhibit C.

Sec. 4. That Polk County determines that an emerg€ncy_ related to the. economic welfare of
the citizens of Polk County is declared and this Ordinance is effective immediately upon passage.

Dated this 10th day of May,2023 at Dallas, Oregon.

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Jeremy Gordon, Charr

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Craig Pope, Commissioner

Approved as to Form

Morgan Smith
County Counsel

First Reading
Second Reading:
Recording Secretary:

2ORDINANCE NO. 23-OI



EXHIBIT A

Amendments to Polk County Zoningordinance Chapter 136;

Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) ZoningDistrict

Additions are double-undedincd

Deletions are in strit<€+hreugh

PARKSIPUBLIC/QUASI-PUBLIC
FACILITIES

HV OTHER PCZO

Schools, public or private (K-12) that serve the
residents ofthe rural area

NP CUP 0s0(rD

ies NP A+ a4e#)
Ctrurctres ana cemeter
churches

P E 03!IK)

Parks, private, including playgrounds,
huntine/fi shing preserves and campgrounds

NP CUP 0s0(DD)

Publis Pparks and playgrounds. A public park
may be established consistent with the provisions
of ORS 195.120

CUP CUP oso(cc)

Model Aircraft Takeoff and Landing Sites AR AR 040(Y)

Expansion of Existing County Fairgrounds CUP CUP 0s0GE)

Golf Courses NP CUP 0s0GF)

Community centers owned by a governmental
agency or a nonprofit organization

CUP CUP 0s0(GG)

Firearms training facility as provided in ORS
r97.770

AR AR 040(4,9
z)

Livins history museum CUP CUP 0s0EH)

136.030. USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT. The following uses are permitted, subject to
applicable standards set forth in the Polk County Zoning Ordinance and as may otherwise be

indicated by federal, state and local permits or regulations:

1

RESOURCE USES HV OTHER PCZO

Farm Use as defined in ORS 215.203 P P 0s0(A)

Facili for the Proces of Farm AR AR 0406)

Use and of Forest Lands P P 030(B)

Farm and Forest Accessory Structures P P 030(c)

Forest Product Primary Processing Facility CUP CUP 0s0u)

Wetland CreatiorVRestoration and Enhancement P P 0s0D)

Wildlife Habitat eenservatierr and lUanagement
Plan

P P ase@

Aquaculture CUP CUP 0s0G)

Insect Breeding CUP CUP 050rc)

Operations for the Extraction and Bottling of
Water

CUP CUP 050(D)

Ordinance 23-01



(K)
M

Worshin services.

Relision classes.

Weddinss.

EuueralL

Meal orosrams.

A Aeolrntv rnall

(b)

(I) Replacement Dwelline IOAR 660-0 3 3 -0 I 3 0 (8) and temporory relating to
notes following ORS ) 5 A
tered, restored or

(1) The dwelling may be altered, restored or replaced if, when an application for a
permit is submitted, the permitting authority:

(a) Finds to the satisfaction of the permitting authority that the dwelling to
be altered, restored or replaced has, or formerly had:

(i) Intact exterior walls and roof structure;

(iD'rl3m$#*.io"Li'itlfi 
ttTf ff ti,'S;Jil',"J,andbathing

(iiD Interior wiring for interior lights; and

(iv) A heating system; and

CI

@
@
CI
@
@
CI

(a)

136.040. USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW. The following uses are
permitted, subject to review and approval under the prescriptive standards specified herein and as

may otherwise be indicated by federal, state and local regulations and permits:

SINGLE.FAMILY RE SIDENCES

2



te the land and beeame suhieet te assessment as deseribed in

@ine.
&) IflLhelhuqlling was removed- destroved or

O fhe Awe[ins's tax lo
valorcnlaxcffind

@ Anrremovat, Oestruc
Januaryl*l973;

OI

o
@

For the previous fiv

@

@

permit is sr*6mittbd, the dwelling meets the lequirements ef subseetien (lXa)
i
e+eie+tnis-see+ie@
per#g+ng-at#

$@ For replacement of a lawfully established dwelling under eRS-2+983
GXdthisscetion:
(a) The dwelling to be replaced must be removed, demolished or converted

to an allowable nonresidential use:

(i) Within one year after the date the replacement dwelling is
certified for occupancy pursuant to ORS 455.055; or

(iD If the dwelling to be replaced is, in the discretion of the
permitting authority, in such a state of disrepair that the
structure is unsafe for occupancy or constitutes an attractive
nuisance, on or before a date set by the permitting authority
that is not less than 90 days after the replacement permit is
issued.

(b) The replacement dwelling:

(D May be sited on any part of the same lot or parcel.

J



(ii) Must comply with applicable siting standards. However, the
standards inly not be applied in a manner that prohibits the
siting of the replacement dwelling.

(c) As a condition of approval, if the dwelling to be replaced is located on a
portion of the lot oi parcel that is not zoned for exclusive farm use, the
ipplicant shall execute and cause to be recorded in the deed records of
t66 county in which the property is located a deed restriction prohibiting
the siting-of another dwetting on that portion of the lot or parcel. The
restriction imposed is irrevocable unless the county pJanning director, or
the director's-designee, places a statement of release in the deed records
of the county to tG effeit that the provisions of this section and ORS
2I5.283 regarding replacement dwellings have changed to allow the
lawful siting of another dwelling.

(4)O Notwithstanding subsecti on (3!)(b)(i)

the feattrres deseribed in subseetien (1) ef this seetien; er

ien'

(a) Using all or part of the footprint of the replaced dwelling or near a road,
ditchlriver, property line, forest boundary or another natural boundary
of the lot or parcel; and

(b) If possible, for the purpose of minimizing the adverse impacts on
resource use of land in the area, within a concentration or cluster of
structures or within 500 yards of another structure.

@)([ The County Planning Director, or the Director's designee,.shall maintain a
record of the lots and parcels that do not qualify for the siting of a n-ew

dwelling under subsection (3)A of this section, including a copy of the deed
restrictions filed under subsection (3)gxd of this section.

(flO If an applicant is granted a defened replacement permit under this section:

(a) The deferred replacement permit:

(i) Does not expire but, notwithstanding subsection (3)Q(a)(i) of
this section,-the permit becomes void unless the dwelling to be
replaced is removed or demolished within three months after
the deferred replacement permit is issued; and

(ii) May not be transferred, by sale or otherwise, except by the
applicant to the spouse or a child of the applicant.

(b) The replacement dwelling must comply with applicable building codes,
plumbing codes, sanitation codes and other requirements relating to-
health and safety or to siting at the time of construction. However, the
standards may not be applied in a manner that prohibits the siting of the
replacement dwelling.

(8)

(d The drvell:ng has tacable valr*e in its present state; er had tarable value
v#€n{+€-drid+ing'

4



(ii) Was deskeyed by fire er ether aet ef Ged; and

Notes:

ta*relt'
(1) A replacement dwelling permit that is issued under ORS

215.2$0)(p) is not subject to the time to act limits of ORS
2t s.4r7 [oAR 660-0033-0 I 30(8Xd)@(B)]

(2) These temporary previsions to ORS zl1.rysunset on
January 2,2024. [Amended by ordinance 18-01andjLL01l

PARKS/PUBLIC/QUASI.PUBLIC FACILITIES

grgirr"s€€-H-031

@,D(D Firearms training-facilit-v as provided in ORS 197.770, subject to the standards listed
in Section 136.065

5



EXHIBIT B

Amendments to Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 138;

Farm Forest (F/T) Zoning District

Additions are double-undediocd

Deletions are instrike+hrer*gh

138.015 DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Chapter. the followins definitions shall apply:

(A) Auxiliary: As used in Section 138.040, "auxiliary" means a use or alteration of a
structure or land which provides help or is directly associated with the conduct of a
particular forest practice. An auxiliary structure is located on site, temporary in nature,
^and 

is not designed to remain for the forest's entire growth cycle from planting to
harvesting. Ai auxiliary use is removed when a particular forest practice has concluded.

(B)

(c)
Definitions contained in ORS I97.0I5 and the Statewide Planning Goals.

Conservation Service O{RCS) soil survey. [Amended by ordinance 11-031

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

CI

Conservation Service CIRCS) soil survey. [Amended byordinance ll-031

Date of Creation and Existence: When a lot, parcel or tract is reconfigured pursuant to
4,l993,theeffectofwhichisto.qualiffalotparcelor

tiact for the siting of a dwelling, the date of the reconfiguration is the date of creation or
existence. Reconfigured meani any change in the boundary of the lot, parcel or tract.

Forest Operation means any commercial activity relating to the growing or harvesting of
any forest tree species as defined in ORS 527.620(6).

Relative means a child, parent, stepparent, grandchild, grandparent, stepgrandparent,
sibling, stepsibling, niece, nephewor first cousin as defined in ORS 215.283(l)(eXA).

Tract means one or more contiguous lots or parcels in the Same ownership.

RESOURCE USES AUTHORIZATION PCZO

Farm Use as defined in ORS 215.203 P 040(A)

Use and Management of Forest Lands P 040(B)

Farm and Forest Accessory Structures P 040(c)

Temporary Portable Facilities for Primary Processing of Forest
Products

P 040(D)

IOrdinance 23-0I



EXHIBIT B

Temporary on-site structures auxiliary to a particular forest
operation; including forest labor camps - no permanent structures.

P 040(E)

Fire Service facilities providing rural fire protection services
including Fire Towers and Fire Stations

P 040(F)

Creation, Restoration, and Enhancement of wetlands, fisheries and

wildlife habitat
P 040(G)

Soil, Air and Water Conservation Activities P 040(H)

Inigation canals, delivery lines and those structures and accessory
operation facilities associated with a district as defined in ORS
540.505

P 040(r)

Physical Alterations to the Land Auxiliary to Forest Practices P 040(J)

Wildlife F{abitat eenservatien md Mana€ement Plan P o4e(K)

Processing Facility for Farm Crops AR 0s0(A)

Permanent Facility for Primary Processing of Forest Products CUP 060(A)

Permanent Logging Equipment Repair and Storage Facility CUP 060(B)

Log Scaling and Weigh Stations CUP 060(c)

Forest Management Research and Experimentation Facilities CUP 060(D)

Aquaculture CUP 060(E)

Insect Breeding CUP 060(F)

Operations for the Extraction and Bottling of Water CUP 060(G)

COMMERCIAL AUTHORIZATION PCZO

On-site Filming and Accessory Activities for 45-days or less (ORS
21s.306).

P 040(I)(K)

Single Day Agri-Tourism/Commercial Event P 040srxM)

Winery, as described in ORS 215.452 or 215.453 AR & CUP os0(B) &
060(N)

Cider Business, as described in ORS 2I5.45I AR 0s0(c)

Farm Brewery AR 0s0(D)

Farm Stand P&AR 04O(M)rL)
& 0s0(E)

Commereial Activity In Conjunction with Farm Use CUP 060(H)

2Ordinance 23-01



EXHIBIT B

Food Service Safe Harbor CUP 060(I)

Home Occupations CUP 060(J)

On-site Filming and Accessory Activities for more than 45-days
(oRS 2ts.306).

CUP 060(K)

Dog Kennels** CUP 060(L)

Dog Training Classes or Testing Trials AR 0s0(F)

Landscape Contracting Business CUP 060(M)

MINERAL AND AGGREGATE OPERATIONS AUTHORIZATION PCZO

Exploration and Production of Geothermal, gas, oil, and other
associated hydrocarbons, (ORS 517 .7 50)

P 04O(e)N

Exploration for Mineral and Aggregate as defined by ORS 517.750 P 04o(Bo

Mining and Processing of Geothermal, (ORS 522.005) Oil and Gas
(ORS 5ZO.OOS; including Mineral and Aggregate Materials,_
Processing of Aggregate into Asphalt or Portland Cement (ORS
5I7.750) and Processing of Other Mineral Resources

CUP 060(o)

TRANSPORTATION AUTHORIZATION PCZO

Reconstruction or Modification of Public Roads, not including
addition of travel lanes, removal of buildings or creation of new
parcels.

P 040€)@

Climbing and Passing Lanes within Right-of Way existing on July 1,

t987.
P 04OG)Q

Temporary Public Road Detours P 040s@

Minor Betterment to Existing Road and Highway Related Facilities,
including climbing and passing lanes within right-of-way existing on
July 1, 1987.

P 040(DQ

Widening of Roads within existing right-of-way P 040({ArT)

Temporary asphalt and concrete batch plants as accessory uses to
specific highway projects.

CUP 060(P)

Expansion of Existing Airport. CUP 060(Q)

Construction of Additional Passing and Travel lanes requiring
acquisition of right-of-way, but not resulting in the creation of new
parcels.

CUP 060(R)

Personal Use Airports and Helipads CUP 060(s)

JOrdinance 23-0I



EXHIBIT B

Reconstruction or Modification of Public Roads, involving the
removal of buildings, but not the creation of new parcels.

CUP 060(r)

Improvements to Existing Road and Highway Related Facilities
wh-ere additional property right-of-way is required.

CUP 060(u)

Transportation Facilities: Roads and Highways; including aids to
Navigation and Aviation

CUP 060(v)

UTILITIES AND SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES AUTHORIZATION PCZO

Utility Facility Service Lines P 04O(v)g

Non-Commercial Wind Energy Systems, Meteorological Towers and
Photovoltaic Systems

P 04O€BQ

Utility Facilities Necessary for Public Service, excepting commercial
powei generating facilities, transmission towers over 200 feet in
height, and a communications tower over 200 feet in height

AR oso(G)

Non-Commercial Wind Energy Systems and Meteorological Towers
that Require a Height or Type of Construction Modification

AR 0so(H)

Solid Waste Disposal Site under ORS 459.245 CUP 060(w)

Composting Facilities* * CUP 0s0(D &
060(x)

Communication and Broadcast Towers over 200 feet in height CUP 060(Y)

Commercial Power Generating Facilities CUP 060Q)

Commercial Wind Power Generating Facilities CUP o6o(AA)

New Electric Transmission Lines with right of way widths of up to
100 feet as specified in ORS 772.210 and Distribution Lines with
right-of-way widths of up to 50 feet.

CUP 060(BB)

Drinking Water Facilities (Intake, Treatment, pumping stations, etc.) CUP 060(cc)

Reservoirs and Water Impoundments CUP 060(DD)

Non-Commercial Wind Energy Systems and Meteorological Towers
in a UGB

CUP 060(EE)

PARKS/PUBLIC/QUASI.PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHORIZATION PCZO

Uninhabitable Structures Accessory to Fish and Wildlife
Enhancement

P 04O(xxv0

Private Fee Hunting Operations without any accommodations. P 040(+)@

Caretaker Residence for Parks and Hatchertes P O OS),/Y\

4Ordinance 23-01



EXHIBIT B

Firearms Training Facility (ORS 197.770) P 040(a(z\

Model Aircraft Takeoff and Landing Sites AR 0so(J)

AR 0s0(K)

Cnurcnes ana cemeterl P 040(AA)

Destination Resorts pursuant to ORS 197.435 to 197.465 and
Statewide Planning Goal 8**

AR oso@)@

Parks, Private, including Playgrounds, Hunting/Fishing Preserves and
Campgrounds**

CUP 060(FF)

Parks, Public or Nonprofit, including Playgrounds or Community
Centers**

CUP 060(GG)

Private Seasonal Accommodations for Fee Hunting Operations CUP 060(HH)

Private Seasonal Accommodations for Fee Fishing Operations CUP 060(rD

Expansion of an Existing County Fairgrounds CUP 060(JJ)

Golf Courses and accessory usesx* CUP 060(KK)

Cemeteries CUP 060(LL)

Community Centers CUP 060(MM)

Living History Museum CUP 060(NN)

Schools, Public or Private (K-12) that serve the residents of the rural
area**

CUP 060(oo)

RESIDENTIAL USES AUTHORIZATION PCZO

Replacement Dwelling AR 0so(MD

Replacement of Historic Dwelling AR 0sO(Nu

Temporary Hardship Dwelling AR 0sO(oD

Residential Home (ORS 197.660) CUP 060(PP)

Room and Board Arrangements CUP 060(QQ)

USES ON TRACTS PREDOMINATELY USED FOR
FORESTRY AS DEFINED IN 138.070

AUTHORIZATION PCZA

Small Tract, Forest Land "Lot of Record" Dwelling AR 080(BX1)

Large Tract Forest Land Dwelling AR 080(BX2)

"Template" Forest Land Dwelling AR 080(B)(3-4)

5Ordinance 23-0I



EXHIBIT B

Youth Camp CUP oe0(BX1)

** Use requires a determination of soil classes

138.040 USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT The following uses are permitted, subject to
applicable standards set forth in the Polk County ZoningOrdinance and as may otherwise be
indicated by federal, state and local permits or regulations:

RESOURCE USES

2+5-808.

COMMERCIAL

@& On-Site Filming and AccessoryActivities for 45 days or less pursuant to ORS 215.306.

(M)Q Farm Stand IOAR 660-033-0130(23)J, subject to the following requirements:

(1) The structures are temporary, do not require building permits undg_r_ the Oregon
Structural Specialty Code, and are used for sale of farm cr,op! and livestock grown
on the farmbperation, or grown on the farm operation and other_farm-operations in
Oregon, inclu-ding the sale of retail incidental items to promote the sale of farm
crop-s oi livestocf sold at the farm stand, if the annual sales of the incidental items
do irot make up mors than25 percent of the total annual sales of the farm stand; and

(2) If retail incidental items are offered for sale, lhey shall be offered for sale at the
same time and location as the farm crops and livestock sold by the farm stand.

(3) The farm stand does not include structures designe_d for occupa.nlY as a residence or
for activities other than the sale of farm crops and livestock and does not include
structures for banquets, public gatherings or public entertainment.

(4) As used in this section, "farm crops or livestock" includes both fresh-and processed

farm crops and livestock grown on the farm operation, or grown on the farm
operation and other farm operations in Oregon. As used in-this subsection,
"irocessed crops and livesfock" includes jams, syrups, apple cider, animal products
and other similar farm crops and livestock that havebeen processed and converted
into another product but not prepared food items. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a

farm stand used in conjunction with a marijuana crop is not permitted.

(5) Farms stands that would include fee based activities to promote the sale of farm
crops or livestock sold at the farm stand shall be reviewed under PCZO 138.050(C)

[Amended by Ordinance 13-05 and 16-01]

EDM Event or A single, one-day agri-
tourism or other event or activity may be permitted on atract in a calendar
year. The applic to ministerial review for each
event or activity on prior to the event
Authorization shall be to the applicant and is not transferred by, orpersonal

the tract.with, a conveyance of The event or activity:

(l) Must be incidental and subordinate to existing farm use on the tract;

(2) May not begin before 6 a.m. or end after 10 p.m.;

(3) May not involve more than 100 attendees or 50 vehicles;

(4) May not include the artificial amplification of music or voices before 8 a.m. or after 8

p.m.;

ant shall obtain a permit that is subject
from the Polk County Planning Divisi or activity.

transferable

6Ordinance 23-01



EXHIBIT B

(5) May not require or involve the construction or use of a new permanent structure in
connection wlttr the agri-tourism or other commercial event or activity;

(6) Must be located on a tract of at least 10 acres unless the owners or residents of
adjoining properties consent, in writing, to the location; and

(7) Must comply with applicable health and fire and life safety requirements. [Arnended by

Ordinance 13-051

MINERAL AND AGGREGATE OPERATIONS

@N and other associated hydrocarbons,
including the placement other customary

as defined in ORSproduction equipment for an
17 and520.Chapters 5

@)A Exploration-for Mineral and Agqregate Resources as defined by ORS Chapter 5I7.570

TRANSPORTATION

(a@

G)a
(s)@

(D0 Minor

(u)0

sr)g

€#)&

or
of travel lanes, removal or

and
of or

not including the
creation ofnew parcels

existing as of July
operation and

Climbinq and Passing Lanes within the Right-Qf-Wa:t existing as of July 1,1987.

that will be abandoned and restored to
condi or use at time as no longer needed.

Road and such as

maintenance yards, weigh sta and rest areas, within -way
l,1987, and contiguous public-owned property
maintenance of public roads and highways.

utilized to support the

Widening o.f Roads within existing rights-of-way in conformance with the transportation
eLernenfif-acknowledged comprehensive plans including public road and highway
proj ects as describea in g*S++S:+:€X*r)+*er*eh{p}and ORS 2 I 5.2 8 3 ( 1 Xk)+h+ough
@

UTILITIES AND SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES

Utilin Facilit.v Service Lines IOAR 660-033-0130(32)J, and facilities or structures that

@eutilityserviceisreceivedbythecustomerandthatarelocatedon
one or more of the following:

(l) A public right of way; or

(2) Land immediately adjacent to a public right of way, provided the written consent of
all adjacent property owners has been obtained; or

(3) The properly to be served by the utility.

Meteorol
ties but not wind energy systems

utilizing
112.t35

towers and meteorological
and 112.137. Roof-mounted, building-integrated, building-mounted and

7Ordinance 23-01



EXHIBIT B

architectural wind energy systems that extend no more than an additional 5 feet above the
highest ridge of the building's roof or 15 feet above the highest eave, whichever is higher,
atr-O Oo notixceed the heigh't limitation of the zone, are subject to the standards listed in
Section 112.137. Photovoltaic systems are subject to the standards described in Section
112.138. [Amended by ordinance 09-06]

PARKS/PUBLIC/QUASI.PUBLIC FACILITIES

tr)@ t Tninhnhitable .ltwtrhtvec Ar/'p tn Fich and Wilili{o hnmnowomt

e9@ Private Fee Huntins Operations without any accommodations.

&)& Caretaker Residence for a Park or Public Fish Hatcherv.

@,84
(Aar

Firearms Traininp nursuant to ORS I97.770

iD

(a) Worshin services.

ft) Relision classes.

(c) Weddinss.

(dl--Iuncrals.
(e) Meal orosrams.

(2\ A countv mav:

(a)

(b)

138.050 USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATM REVIEW The following uses are
permitted, subject to review and approval under the prescriptive standards specified herein, the
general siting standards for dwellings and structures under Section 138.110, thg firg siting standards
for dwellingi and structures under 138.120, and as may otherwise be indicated by federal, state and
local permits or regulations. lamenoed by ordinance rl-03 andZl4ll

PARKS/PUBLIC/QUASI.PUBLIC FACILITIES

8Ordinance 23-01



EXHIBIT B

(K)

value, New ehwehes and asseeiated eemeteries en net high value faffilarid; er the

@lg Destination Resort IORS 2 ] 5.253@Ol, subject to compliancg wit! the requirements of
OnS tqru35 to 197.a67 and Oregon Statewide Planning Goal 8. Qr{ote: destination resorts
are not authorized on lands classified as high-value.)

RESIDENTIAL USES

€M)O Replacement Dwellinq [OAR 660-03
replacement dwellings are compiled
established d may be altered,

(1) The dwelling may be altered, restored or replaced if, when an application tbr a

permit is submitted, the permitting authority:

(a) Finds to the satisfaction of the permitting authority that the dwelling to
be altered, restored or replaced has, or formerly had:

(i) Intact exterior walls and roof structure;

(ii) Indoor plumbing consisting of a kitchen sink, toilet and
bathing facilities connected to a sanitary waste disposal
system;

(iii) Interior wiring for interior lights; and

(iv) A heating system; and

(b) Finds that the drvelling was assessed as a drvelling fer purpeses ef ad

ine
lvas eliminated as a resCt ef the destruetion; er demelitien in

ine.

@) ff the aweiline was r

fhe Awe[ing's tax
valorem taxes: and

Any removal, destruo

CI

@
Januarv 1.1973:

o

@

9Ordinance 23-01

OI

O For the previous fiv tax vee$i !r



EXHIBIT B

@

@a

g)CI

For replacement of a lawfully established dwelling under ORS-215?83
A+Cthis section:

(a) The dwelling to be replaced must be removed, demolished or converted
to an allowable nonresidential use:

(i) Within one year after the date the replacement dwelling is
certified for occupancy pursuant to ORS 455.055; or

(ii) If the dwelling to be replaced is, in the discretion of the
permitting auihority, in such a state of disrepair that the
structure is unsafe for occupancy or constitutes an attractive
nuisance, on or before a date set by the permitting authority that
is not less than 90 days after the replacement permit is issued.

(b) The replacement dwelling:

(D May be sited on any parL of the same lot or parcel.

(iD Must comply with applicable siting standards. However, the
standards may not be applied in a manner that prohibits the
siting of the replacement dwelling.

(c) As a condition of approval, if the dwelling to be replaced is located on a
portion of the lot oi parcel that is not zoned for exclusive farm use, the
ipplicant shall execute and cause to be recorded in the deed records of
tlie county in which the property is located a deed restriction prohibiting
the siting-of another dwelling on that portion of the lot or parcel. The
restriction imposed is irrevocable unless the county planning director, or
the director's designee, places a statement of release in the deed records
of the county to the effect that the provisions of this section and ORS
215.253 regarding replacement dwellings have changed to allow the
lawful siting of another dwelling.

Notwithstanding sub section (3) (b)(i) of thi s secti on, snbsee+ion-+eFthis
s€€+ioffippti
reptaeemen*

the features deseribed in subseetien (1) ef this seetien; er

ign'

{S)-The replacement dwelling must be sited on the same lot or parcel:

(a) Using all or part of the footprint of the replaced dwelling or near atoad, ,
ditch, river, property line, forest boundary or another natural boundary of
the lot or parcel; and

(b) If possible, for the purpose of minimizing the adverse impacts on
resource use of land in the area, within a concentration or cluster of
structures or within 500 yards of another structure.

Ordinance 23-0I 10



@@

€)o

(8)

The county planning director, or the director's designee, shall maintain a record
of the lots-and parcels that do not qualifu for the siting of a new dwelling r13dgr

subsection @bof this section, includihg a copy of the deed restrictions filed
under subsection @)gxd of this section.

If an applicant is granted a deferred replacement permit under this section:

(a) The deferued replacement permit:

(i) Does not expire but, notwithstanding subsection (}@(a)(i) of
this section, the permit becomes void unless the dwelling to be

replaced is removed or demolished within three months after
th-e defened replacement permit is issued; and

(ii) May not be transferred, by sa]g.qr otherwise, except by the
applicant to the spouse or a child of the applicant.

(b) The replacement dwelling must comply with applicable building codes,
plumbing codes, sanitation codes and other requirements_relating to.

health arid safety or to siting at the time of construction. However, the
standards may not be applied in a manner that prohibits the siting of the
replacement dwelling.

r\s used in this scet

v*en+ne+vre+ing'

(ii) Was destreyed by fire er ether aet efGed; and

EXHIBIT B

AA(M)

taxdt
Notes: (1) A replacement dwelling permit that is issued under ORS

215.2$(I)(p) is not subject to the time to act limits of ORS
2rs.4r7 [oAR 660-0033-01 30(8Xe@(B)]

(2) These temporary previsions to ORS zl\.?*3plsunset on
January 2,2024. [Amended by Ordinance 18-01 and 23=Oll

Replacement qf Historic Dwelling IORS 215.253(])(o)J. $dwelling_listed on the Polk
ontheNationalRegisterofHistoricPlaceswhichhasbeen

partitiirned from the farmtract as provided by ORS 215.263(9)(b), may be replaced on a
portion of the farm tract.

Temporaryt Hardship Dwelling IOAR 660-033-0130(10)]. One manufactured dwelling,
recreational vehicle, or the temporary residential use of an existing building in
conjunction with an existing d*elling as a temporary use for the term of the hardship
suffered by the existing resident or a relative of the resident, provided that:

(1) The hardship is certified by a licensed physician;

(2) The manufactured home or existing building converted to residential use is
connected to the existing sewage disposal system; except when the County
Sanitarian finds the existing system tb be inadequate and that it cannot be repaired
or is not physically available; If the manufactured home will use a public sanitary
system, such condition will not be required.

(e)N

Ordinance 23-0I 1l



(3)

(4)

(s)

(6)

(8)

(7)

EXHIBIT B

The applicant agrees to renew the permit every two years.

Within 3 months of the end of the hardship, the manufactured dwellingrrecreational
vehicle, or building converted to a temporary residential use, shall be removed,
demolished, or converted to an approved nonresidential use.

The dwelling will not force a significant change in accepted farm or forest practices

on surrounding lands devoted to farm or forest use; and

The dwelling will not significantly increase the cost of accepted farm or forest
practices on lands devoted to farm or forest use.

As used in this section, "hardship" means a medical hardship or hardship for the
care ofan aged or infirm person or persons.

A temporary residence approved under this section is not eligible for replacement
under Section 1 3 8.050(J)Q.

I38.O8O USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND BASED ON THE
DETERMINIATION OF PREDOMINATE USE OF TRACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
SECTION 138.070 The following uses are permitted, subject to review and approval under the
prescriptive standards specified herein, the general siting standards for dwelling.s and structures
under Section 138.110,ihe fire siting standards for dwellings and structures under 138.120, and
as may otherwise be indicated by federal, state and local permits or regulatiors. [Amended by

Ordinance I l-03 andZlJll

(B) FOREST - Uses subject to administrative review on a tract where the predominate use

has been determined to be forest use.

DWELLINGS

(3) Small Tract "Template" Dwelling IOAR 660-006-0027(3)]. A dwelling may be

authorized on a tract that meets the following criteria:

(a) The tract is less than 60 acres in size;

(b) The tract meets one of the following:

(i) The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing more
than 85 cu. ft. per acre of wood fiber if:

(c)

(A) All or part of at least 1 1 other lots or parcels that existed on January 1,

1993, are within a 160 acre square centered on the center of the subject
tract. Ifthe tract abuts a road that existed as ofJanuary 1, 1993, the
measurement may be made by creating a 160-acre rectangle that is one
mile long and one-quarter mile wide centered on the center of the subject
tract and aligned with the road to the maximum extent possible; and

(B) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l, 1993 and continue to
exist on the other lots or parcels; or

The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing 50 to 85 cu. ft.
per acre of wood fiber if:

(D All or part of at least seven (7) other lots or parcels that existed on_January 1,

1993, are within a 160 acre square centered on the center of the subject tract.
If the tract abuts a road that existed as of January l,1993, the measurement
may be made by creating a 160-acre rectangle that is one mile long and_one-
quarter mile wide centered on the center of the subject tract and aligned with
the road to the maximum extent possible; and

Ordinance 23-0I t2



(d)

(e)

(0

EXHIBIT B

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1,1993 and continue to exist
on the other lots or parcels; or

The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing 0 to 49 cu. ft.
per acre of wood fiber if:

(i) All or part of at least three (3) other lots or parcels that existed on January 1,

1993, ire within a160 acre square centered on the center of the subject tract.
If the tract abuts a road that existed as of January I,1993, the measurement
may be made by creating a 160-acre rectangle tha! is one mile long and one-
quarter mile wi-de centered on the center of the subject tract and aligned with
the road to the maximum extent possible; and

(iD At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1,1993 and continue to exist
on the other lots or parcels.

The tract contains no dwellings on other lots or parcels that make up the tract;

The tract is not subject to deed restrictions established under OAR 660-006-0027(6)
and Section 138.080(B)(2Xb) of this Ordinance;

Parcels l0 acres or less in size shall not be required to submit a stocking report prior
to receiving a permit for the dwelling as authorized by this subsection;

Lots or parcels within urban growth boundaries shall may not be used to satisff the
eligibilib requirements under subsections 1 3 8. 080(B)(gQ;

fne tot or parcet on m cstab[Scd:

(e)

(h)

o
CI

@

0

I

2.

(4) Large Tract "Template" Dwelling IOAR 660-006-0027(5)] ' A dwelling may be

authorized on a tract that meets the following criteria:

(a) The tract is 60 acres or larger in size;

(b) The tract meets one of the following:

(D The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing more
than 85 cu. ft. per acre of wood fiber if:

(ii) All or part of at least I 1 other lots or parcels that existed on January l, 1993,
are within a 160 acre square centered on the center of the subject tract.
However, if the tract abuts a road or perennial stream, the measurement shall
be made by creating a 160-acre rectangle that is one mile long and one-quarter
mile wide centeredbn the center of the subject tract and aligned with the road
or stream to the maximum extent possible; and

nnrnved on another of or nafce t

Ordinance 23-01 13



(c)

(d)

(e)

(0
(e)

(h)

CI

CI

@

0

EXHIBIT B

(iiD At least three (3) dwellings existed on January I,1993 and continue to exist
on the other lots or parcels; or

The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing 50 to 85 cu. ft.
per acre of wood fiber if:
(i) All or part of at least seven (7) other lots or parcels that existed on_January 1,

1993,6,re within a 160 acre square centered on the center of the subject tract.
However, if the tract abuts a rbad or perennial stream, the measurement shall
be made by creating a 160-acre rectangle that is one mile !9ng qnd^o_ne--quarter

mile wide centered on the center of the subject tract and aligned with the road

or stream to the maximum extent possible; and

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1,1993 and continue to exist
on the other lots or parcels; or

The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing 0 to 49 cu, ft.
per acre of wood fiber if:

(i) All or part of at least three (3) other lots or parcels that existed on January 1,

1993, are within a 160 acre centered on the center of the subject tract.
However, if the tract abuts a road or perennial stream, the measurement shall
be made by creating a I60-aue rectangle that is one mile !9ng qnd.o-ne--quarter
mile wide-centered-on the center of the subject tract and aligned with the road
or stream to the maximum extent possible; and

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l,1993 and continue to exist
on the other lots or parcels; and,

Ifthe tract is situated such that the road or stream crosses the tract, at least one (1)
of the three (3) required dwellings shall be on the same side of the road or stream as

the proposeci dwefiing, and within the 160-acre rectangle or within 1/4 mile from
the bdgB of the tract ihere the dwelling will be located, but not outside the length of
the rectangle.

The tract contains no dwellings on other lots or parcels that make up the tract.

The tract is not subject to deed restrictions established under OAR 660-006-0027(6)
and Section 138.080(B)(2Xb) of this Ordinance;

Lots or parcels within urban growth boundaries shall may not be used to satisfl'the
eligibility requirements under subsections 1 3 8. 080(BXa);

fne tot or oarcet on *

2L011

1

Ordinance 23-01 t4



EXHIBIT B

138.110 GENERAL SITING STANDARDS FOR DWELLINGS AND STRUCTURES
IOAR 660-006-0029J.The following standards apply to all new dwellings and structures] lAmended by

Ordinance I l-03 and-jll4ll

(A)

2.

(+)
wildfi+e' fne rists assoclate .

(5) Is eensistentwith ether requirements eontained in the eemprehensive.Plan or
imptementing erdinffi
fl€

riparia+erbi,g€€tr€+as€+'

(t) F{as the least impaet o
&eyhanclbsl6ast impact oi neffb ;

(2)
iffiped€d

(3)
serviee-eerriders

a A water use permit is
in tne appticatlon; or

@

(€)a

(D

Ordinance 23-01 15



€)@

(EE@

(3) The property owner shall submit a stocking survey report
the minimum

to the Polk County
Assessor and the Assessor shall that
been met by the time required by the of Forestry Rules. The Assesser

(4) Upon notification by the Assessor, the Department of Fore$ry +"+l w4l determine
whether the tract meets minimum stocking requirements of the Forest Practices Act.
If the Department determines that the traci does not meet thos_e requirements, the
department shal+ udll noti$ the owner and the Assessor that the land is not being
minaged as forest land. The Assessor shall ur[lthen _remove the forest land
desigiation pursuant to ORS 32I.359 and impose additional tax pursr*anlt+ORS
32+3q2.

138.120 FIRE SITING STANDARDS FOR DWELLINGS AND STRUCTURES 

'OIR660-006-0035J.The following standards apply to all new dwellings and structuresl [Amended by

0rdinance I 1-03 and2llJ)ll

(A)

CI

As a condition of approval, if road access to the dwelling is by a road owned and

maintained by a privite party or by the Oregon Department oflorestry, jhe U,Q. Bureau
of Land Manigeinent oithe U.S. Forest Seivice, then the applicant shall provide.proof of
a long-term.oid acc"ss use permit or agreement. The. road use permit may require the
applicant to agree to accept responsibility for road maintenance.

Approval of a dwelling on a parcel or tract which is larger than 10 acres in size shall be

subject to the following requirements:

(l) Approval of a dwelling requires the owner of the tract to plant a sufficient number of
trees on the'tract to dernonstrate that the tract is reasonably expected to meet
Department of Forestry stocking requirements at the time specified in the
Department of Forestry administrative rules.

(2) The Planning Department shall noti$ the Polk County Assessor of the above

condition at the time the dwelling is approved.

stocking requirements have

EXHIBIT B

Ordinance 23-01 I6



EXHIBIT B

(B)

(q
Road access to the structure shall meet the County road design standards.

ewned er eontrelled by tlre ervner; ef net less than 50 feet eutside the primary-fuel break,
nead fuets shatt be rercv

€) No eertien ef a tree er
@

(F)

(eA The dwelling shall meet the following requirements:

(1) The dwelling has a fire retardant roof.

(2) The dwelling will not be sited on a slope of greater than 40 percent.

€)

g)

that the applieant has asked te be ineluded in the nearest sueh distriet.

(6)0 If the dwelling has a chimney or chimneys, each chimney has a spark arrester.

(+{)

iens

@

a

Ordinance 23-0I t7



EXHIBIT C

Amendments to Polk County Zoningordinance Chapter 177;

Timber Conservation (TC) ZoningDistrict

Additions are doublc-undeducd

Deletions are in stritce+greush

177.020. DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions shall
apply:
(A) Auxiliary. As used in Section ll7.030, "auxiliaty" means a use or alteration of a structure or' ' 

land which provides help or is directly associated with the conduct of a particular forest
practice. Air auxiliary siructure is loiated on site, temporary in nature, and.is not designed 

.

io remain for the foreit's entire growth cycle from planting to harvesting. An auxiliary use is

removed when a particular forest practice has concluded.

(B) Definitions contained in ORS 197.015 and the Statewide Planning Goals.

(C) Cubic Foot Per Acre Per Year means the average annual increase in cubic foot volume of' 
wood fiber per acre for fully stocked stands at the culmination of mean annual increment as

reported byihe USDA Natural Resource Conservation Service G\rRCS) soil survey' [Amended

by Ordinance ll-031

(D) Cubic Foot Per Tract Per Year means the average annual increase in cubic foot volume of' 
wood fiber per tract for fully stocked stands at the culmination of mean annual increment as

reported by the USDA Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) soil survey. [Amended

by Ordinance ll-031

(E) Date of Creation and Existence. When a lot, parcel or tract is reconfigured pursuant to
applicible law after November 4,1993,the effect of which. islo qualify^ a lot,.parcel or tract
foi tfre siting of a dwelling, the date of the reconfiguration is the date of creation or
existence. Reconfigured means any change in the boundary of the lot, parcel or tract.

(F) Forest Operation means any commercial activity relating to the growing or harvesting of
any forest tree species as defined in ORS 527.620(6).

(G) Relative means a child, parent, stepparent, grandchild, grandparent, stepgrandparent, sibling,' 
stepsibling, niece, nephew or first cousin. IORS 215'283(l)(eXA)]

(H) Tract means one or more contiguous lots or parcels in the same ownership.

CI Center of tne SuUie
ttre mathematlcal centroid

177.030. USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT. No building, structure, or premise shall be used,
arranged, or designed to be used, erected, structurally altered or enlarged, except for one or more
of the following uses.

(P) Widening of roads within existing rights-of-way in conformance with the transportation
element of acknowledged comprehensive plans including public road and highway projects
as described in ORS 215.283(1xk)+hreugh-@.

177.035. USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW. The following uses are
permitted, subject to review and approval under the prescriptive standards specified herein, the
hwelling standards under I77.070; the general siting standards for dwellilgs a1d structures under
Section 177.080, the fire siting standards for dwellings and structures under 177.090, and as may
otherwise be indicated by federal, state and local permits or regulatiofls. [Amended by ordinrnce 11-03

attd2t0ll

Ordinance 23-01



EXHIBIT C

(pf A lawfulllr established dwelling that is destroyed by wildfire may be replaced within 60
months when

G) the d

time of

177.070. STANDARDS FOR DWELLINGS. Dwellings are authorized in the Timber
Conservation Zoning District, subject to the siting requiretnents under Section 177.080 and
I77 .090 of the Ordinance, and the following criteria: t.amenaeo nv orotna

(C) Small Tract "Template" Dwelling IOAR 660-006-0027(3)]. A dwelling may be authorized
on a tract that mee-ts the following briteria:

Q)

exPired. rAmettte(l h

1E)@) Wind energy systems utilizing a tower and meteorological towers 
"^"tfi99 

ofan adopted' 
urban grot'ih 6oundary that are not commercial power gen_erating facililies that would
utilizeitower(s) that iequires lighting or that requires modification to the leigfrt orlyqe_91
construction standards d6scribecl-in Section 112.135(C)(1), as provided in Sections ll2.I35
and 112.I37. [Amentled by ordinance 09-061

(l) The tract is less than 60 acres in size;

(2) The tract meets one of the following:
(a) The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing more than 85

cu. ft. per acre of wood fiber if:
(i) All or oart of at least 11 other lots or parcels that existed on January l,1993,\ / 

are within a 160 acre square centered'on the center of the subject tfact (Note: If
the tract abuts a road th^at existed as of January 1,1993, the measurement may
be made bv creatins a 160-acre rectangle that-is one mile long and one-quarter
mile wide"centered"on the center of the subject tract and aligned with the road
to the maximum extent possible.); and

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1,1993 and continue to exist on' 
the other lots or parcels; or

(b) The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing 50 to 85 cu.\- / 
ft. per aCre of w6od fiber if:
(i) All or part of at least seven (7) other lots or parcels that existed on January l,

1993, are within a I 60 acre square centered bn the center of the subject tract
(Not6: If the tract abuts a road that existed as of January 1,. l993,the
measurement mav be made by creating a 160-acre rectangle that is one mile
long and one-quarter mile wide centerEd on the cent-er oflhe subject tract and
aligned with tlie road to the maximum extent possible.); and

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January I,1993 and continue to exist on
the other lots or parcels; or

(c) The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing 0 to 49 cu. ft.\ / 
pei u"re of wood fiber if:
(i) All or part of at least three (3) other lots or parcels that existed on January l,

1993, are within a 160 acre'sQuare centeredon the center of the subject tract
(Not6: If the tract abuts a road that existed as of January 1,. 1993, the
measurement may be made by creating a 160-acre rectingle that is one mile

2

Ordinance 23-01



EXHIBIT C

lons and one-quarter mile wide centered on the center of the subject tract and
alig-ned with tlie road to the maximum extent possible.); and

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January I,1993 and continue to exist on
the other lots or parcels.

(3) The tract contains no dwellings on other lots or parcels that make up the tract.

(a) The tract is not sub.ject to deed restrictions established under OAR 660-006-0027(6) and
Section 177.070(BX2) of this Ordinance.

(5) Parcels 10 acres or less in size shall not be required to submit a stocking report prior to
receiving a permit for the dwelling as authorized by this subsection.

(6) Lots or parcels within urban growth boundaries shsl+ may not be used to satisfy the
eligibility requirements under subsections I77 .07 0(C).

l\av nrope(v line adiustment to the lot
Une aalustment oro

(D) Large Tract "Template" Dwelling [OAR 660-006-0027(5)]. A dwelling may be authorized
on a tract that meets the following criteria:

(1) The tract is 60 acres or larger in size;

(2) The tract meets one of the following:
(a) The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing more than 85

cu. ft. per acre of wood fiber if:
(D All or part of at least 1 1 other lots or parcels that existed on January I, 1993,

are within a 160 acre square centered on the center of the subject tract.
However, if the tract abuts a road or perennial stream, the measurement shall
be made by creating a 160-acre rectangle that is one mile long and.one--quarter
mile wide centered on the center of the subject tract and aligned with the road
or stream to the maximum extent possible; and

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l, 1993 and continue to exist on
the other lots or parcels; or

(b) The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing 50 to 85 cu.
ft. per acre of wood fiber if:
(i) All or part of at least seven (7) other lots or parcels that existed on January 1,

1993, are within a 160 acre square centered on the center of the subject tract.
However, if the tract abuts a ioad or perennial stream, the measurement shall
be made by creating a 160-acre rectangle that is one mile long and one-quarter
mile wide 

-centeredbn 
the center of the subject tract and aligned with the road

or stream to the maximum extent possible; and

0
@

o

L

2.

3

Ordinance 23-0I



EXHIBIT C

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1,1993 and continue to exist on
the other lots or parcels; or

(c) The tract is composed of soils that are capable of annually producing 0 to 49 cu. ft.
per acre of wood fiber if:
O All or part of at least three (3) other lots or parcels that existed on January 1,

1993, are within a 160 acre centered on the center of the subject tract.
However, if the tract abuts a road or perennial stream, the measurement shall
be made by creating a l60-acre rectangle that is one mile long and one-quarter
mile wide centeredbn the center of the subject tract and aligned with the road
or stream to the maximum extent possible; and

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l, 1993 and continue to exist on
the other lots or parcels; and,

(3) If the tract is situated such that the road or stream crosses the tract, at least one(l) of the
three (3) required dwellings shall be on the same side of the road or stream as the
propoied dwelling, and within the 160-acre rectangle or within I14 mlle from the edge

bf the tract where the dwelling will be located, but not outside the length of the
rectangle.

(a) The tract contains no dwellings on other lots or parcels that make up the tract.

(5) The tract is not subject to deed restrictions established under OAR 660-006-0027(6) and
Section 177.070(B)(2) of this Ordinance.

(6) Lots or parcels within urban growth boundaries shall may not be used to satisfy the
eligibility requirements under subsections I77 .070s)|@'.

177.080. GENERAL SITING STANDARDS FOR DWELLINGS AND STRUCTURES
IOAR 660-006-00291.The following standards apply to all new dwellings and structuresl [Amendetl by

Ordinance I 1-03 atd2:L011

(A)

a)

e
a

1

2

4

Ordinance 23-01



EXHIBIT C

(1) Has the lcast impaet
fhev have the l<iast i ;

(2)
iry€d€d

(3)

1+;
,,lrildfue. The risks associated with wildfire are-minimtzcd.

serviee-ee+iders

habi+a*

@

€DA

(qe

(D)@

CI

CI

a e water use permit is
the aoolication: or

As a condition of approval, if road access to the dwelling is by a road owned aqd maintained
by a private party ofUy ttre Oregon Department of Forestry, the U.S. Bureau o-f Land
Management or ihe U.S. Forest Service, then the applicant shall provide proof of a long-
term r:oad access use permit or agreement. The road use permit may require the applicant to
agree to accept responsibility for road maintenance.

Approval of a dwelling on a parcel or tract which is larger than 10 acres in size shall be

subject to the following requirements:

(1) Approval of a dwelling requires the owner of the tract to plant a sufficient number of
trees on the tract to demonstrate that the tract is reasonably expected to meet

5

Ordinance 23-01



Department of Forestry stocking requirements at the time specified in the Department of
Forestry administrative rules.

(2) The Planning Department shall notify the Polk County Assessor of the above condition
at the time the dwelling is approved.

(3) The property owner shall submit a stocking survey leport to the Polk County Assessor

and fhe Ars"sor shall verify that the minimum stbcking requirements lraye. been met by
the time required by the Department of Forestry Rules'

nelbee+me*

(4) Upon notification by the Assessor, the Department of Foreptry shall W4l determine
wirether the tract meets minimum stockin! requirements of the Forest Practices Act. If
the Department determines that the tract dbes not meet those requirements, the
department shal+ will notifu the owner and the Assessor that the land is not being
managed as fores:t land. T[re Assessor @! wilLJhen remove the forest-land designation
pursuant to ORS 32L359 and impose additional tax @.

ITT.OqO. FIRE SITING STANDARDS FOR DWELLINGS AND STRUCTURES IOAR
660-006-00351. The following standards apply to all new dwellings and structures lAmendcdhv

Ordinance2S{l]

EXHIBIT C

(A)

emergencv water source.

(B) Road access to the structure shall meet the County road design standards.

@) y\ primary fuel break shall be eenstrueted er+land surreElrdinq the dryellilg that is e*ned" ena€o#6tte

@) A seeendary fuet bre is' 
errmed er eentrelled by the ewner; ef not less than 50 feet er*tside the prirnary fuel break,

Ordinance 23-01
6



EXHIBIT C

a

(E) Ne pertien ef a tree or
s+evepipe-er€himn%

(F)

(G)QThe dwelling shall meet the following requirements:

(1) The dwelling has a fire retardant roof.

(2) The dwelling will not be sited on a slope of greater than 40 percent.

geafd.€FFeres+r)+

(t
149CI If the dwelling has a chimney or chimneys, each chimney has a spark arrester. IAoctrdrdhv

Ordinanrc2:t0ll

(+{)

7

Ordinance 23-01



POLK COUNTY CONTRACT NO. 23-63

CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into in triplicate this 

- 

day of 2023,

by and between POLK COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, acting by and through

its Board of Commissioners, and the below named company, herein called the "Contractor" for the

Project entitled 2023 Striping, Project No. 1225.

Company Name

Address:

t.

Hicks Striping & Curbing, LLC

PO Box9127
Brooks, OR 97305

CONTRACTOR'S SERVICES: Contractor, hereby agrees to supply the following labor,

materials and/ or services:

Schedule A: All Temporarv Traffic Control and 450,000 feet Hi-Build, Spraved, Surface paint'

Schedule B: All Temoorarv Traffic Control anrl 4.870.000 feet Lonsitu inal Pavement

2

Markings - Paint.

at the unit prices shown on the attached Quote Sheet and to perform and complete the work

herein described and provided for and to furnish all necessary machinery, tools, apparatus,

equipment, supplies, materials and labor, and do all things in accordance with the applicable

General and Special Provisions for the above named project, and in accordance with such

alterations and modifications of the same as may be made by Polk County. This Agreement

shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the

Contractor.

CONTRACT CONTENTS: The entire Contract consists of the following documents:

a. Contract
b. Quote Sheet
c. Special Provisions
d. Any amendments made by subsequent written instrument and signed by both

parties.

To the extent that there are inconsistencies between this contract and the attachments,

interpretations shall be based on the following order of precedence: (1-)This Agreement, (2)

The Quote Sheet, (3)The Special Provisions and ( )Appendix A.

3. CONTRACT TIME: The anticipated work schedule is as follows

Schedule A: July 31 - October 15,2023
Schedule B: July 31 - October L5,2023

Contractor agrees to have equipment and personnel available to supply and apply the

designated quantities of emulsion during these work windows. The contract time may be

modified by written amendment.

2023 Striping
Polk County

Contract - 1



4.

5.

LAWS AND REGULATIONS: Polk County and Contractor agree to comply with the Ordinances

and regulations of Polk County; applicable provisions in any contract between Polk County

and the State of Oregon relating to the services to be provided under this Agreement by the

Contractor; and all provisions of Federal and State Law, rules and regulations relating to

Contractor's performance of services under this Agreement. Specific laws and regulations

that apply are incorporated into the General 2021, Oregon Standard Specifications for

Construction under Part 00100, General Requirements subject to the modifications of the

Special Provisions of this Agreement.

HOLD HARMLESS: Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless Polk County, its

Boards of Commissioners, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, or claims

of any character brought because of any injuries or damage received or sustained by any

person, persons, or property on account of the operations of Contractor, his subcontractors

or the employees of either; or on account of or in consequence of any neglect in safeguarding

the work; or because of any act or omission, neglect, or misconduct of Contractor; or

because of any claims or amounts arising or recovered under any Worker's Compensation

law or any other law, ordinance, order or decree; and so much of the money due Contractor

if any by virtue of this Contract as may be considered necessary by Polk County for such

purpose may be retained for the use of Polk County; or, in case no money is due,

Contractor's surety may be held until such suit or suits, action or actions, claim or claims for

injuries or damages as aforesaid shall have been settled and suitable evidence to that effect

furnished to Polk County; except that money due Contractor will not be withheld when

Contractor produces satisfactory evidence that Contractor is adequately protected by

general liability and property damage insurance, and that said insurance expressly identifies

Polk County and its agents as additional insured.

MONITORING: Contractor agrees that services provided under this contract by Contractor;

facilities used in conjunction with such services; Contractor's policies, procedures,

performance data, financial records, and other similar documents and records of Contractor;

that may pertain to services under this contract, shall be open for inspection by Polk County's

agents at any reasonable time during business hours. Contractor agrees to retain such

records and documents for a period of seven (7) years, or such longer period as may be

prescribed for such records and documents by the State Archivist of Oregon.

PAYMENTS/CONSIDERATION: ln consideration of the faithful performances of all of the

obligations, both general and special, herein set out, and in consideration of the faithful

performance of the work as set forth in this Contract, Quote Sheet, General Provisions,

Schedule of Prices, Special Provisions and all general and detailed Specifications and

Drawings which are a part hereof, and in accordance with the directions of Polk County and

to its satisfaction, Polk County agrees to pay Contractor the amount earned, as determined

from the actual quantities of work performed and the prices and other basis of payment

specified, and taking into consideration any amounts that may be deductible under the

terms of the Contract and to make such payments in the manner and at the times provided

in the applicable Standard Specifications, Special Provisions, and the Schedule of Contract

Prices.

2023 Striping
Polk County

6.

7

Contract - 2



9

8. BOLI Public Works Bond: Pursuant to ORS 279C.836, the Contractor shall

10.

a. Have a public works bond filed with the Construction Contractors Board before

starting work on the project, unless exempt under ORS 279C'836 (4), (7), (8) or (9).

b. lnclude in every subcontract a provision requiring the subcontractor to have a public

works bond filed with the Construction Contractors Board before starting work on

the project, unless exempt under ORS 279C.836 (4), (7), (B) or (9).

pREVAtLtNG WAGE REQUIREMENTS (PWR): Oregon Bureau of Labor and lndustries (BOLI)

"prevailing Wage Rates for Public Works Contracts in Oregon" apply to this Project. For the

correct wage rates, go to BOLI's website at:

http://www.oregon.gov/boli/whd/pwr/pases/pwr state.aspx and refer to the publication

dated January 5,2023 and amendment dated January Il,2023'

Contractor must pay the current prevailing wage rates as established by BOLI and in

accordance with ORS 27\C.8OO - ORS279C,B70 and contained herein, including daily,

weekly, weekend and holiday overtime as required.

RETAINAGE: Pursuant to ORS 279C.845(7), if a Contractor is required to file certified payroll

statements and fails to do so, Polk County shall retain 25 percent of any amount earned by

the Contractor until the Contractor has filed such statements with Polk County' Polk County

will pay the Contractor the amount retained due to failure to submit certified payrolls within

14 days after the Contractor files the certified statements.

pUBL;C WORKS CONTRACT: Contractor must comply with all conditions of OAR 839-025-

0020 for this public works project.

W|THHOLD|NG pAyMENTS/LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: Notwithstanding any other payment

provision of this contract, if Contractor fails to submit required reports when due, or fails to

perform or document the performance of contracted services, Polk County may immediately

withhold payments under this contract and/or assess liquidated damages as described in the

Special Provisions.

INSURANCE: Contractor shall obtain, and at all times keep in effect, comprehensive liability

insurance and property damage insurance covering activities and operations of Contractor.

Contractor may satisfy this requirement for general liability insurance in any manner allowed

by ORS 30.282. No work will be allowed until an insurance certificate naming Polk County

and its agents as an additional insured has been received by Polk County. Such liability

insurance, whatever the form, shall not be less than the limits of public body tort liability

specified in ORS 30.269 or the project Special Provisions, whichever is higher with provision

for increased coverage as such limits are increased by legislative action. Contractor and/or

his insurance company shall provide advance notification as described in Section I7A'7O(e)

of the project Special Provisions.

tt

L2

1_3

2023 Striping
Polk County

Contract - 3



L4,

1_5.

'J"6

TERMINATION: All or part of this contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both

parties; or by Polk County at any time after 30 days notice in writing. ln addition, Polk County

may terminate all or part of this contract for any one or more of the reasons specified below:

a. After 10 days notice, if funding to Polk County from Federal, State or other sources is

not obtained or is not continued at levels sufficient to allow for purchase of the

indicated quantity of services. Polk County will give more notice whenever possible.

b. After 30 days notice, if Federal or State regulations are changed in such a way that

services no longer are allowable under this contract.

c. lmmediately, on notice of denial, revocation or non-renewal of any letter of approval,

license or certificate required by law, rule or regulation to be held by Contractor to
provide a service under this contract.

d. lmmediately, if Contractor fails to provide services, or fails to meet any performance

standards as specified by Polk County in this contract (or subsequent modifications

of this contract) within the time therein specified, or any extensions thereof.

e. lmmediately, if Polk County has evidence that Contractor has endangered or is

endangering the health and safety of clients, residents, staff or the public.

f. lmmediately, upon failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions of this contract

and all applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations.

g. Termination, or the withholding of payments or reduction of obligation under

OO1g5.7O, shall be without prejudice to any other obligation or liability of ether party

accrued prior thereto.

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES: Differences between a Contractor and Polk County, or between

Contractors, will be resolved when possible at appropriate management levels. Polk County

has ultimate responsibility and authority for resolution of disagreements among subcontract

agencies.

DISPUTES: All disputes, and all claims for alleged breach of contract shall, within ten (10)

days of the commencement of dispute be presented in writing to Polk County for decision;

but in the meanwhile, Contractor shall proceed with the work as directed.

a. Contractor shall submit in detail, the claim and proof thereof. Polk County, with

reasonable promptness, shall render its decision to the Contractor in writing.

b. lf Contractor does not agree with any decision of Polk County, Contractor shall except

that decision from the final release.

c. lf Contractor has (1) given notice of any dispute within the limit stated above; (2)

taken exception to Polk County's decision in the release; and (3) brought suit by way

2023 Striping
Polk County

Contract - 4



t7

1B

of arbitration proceeding pursuant to ORS 36.300 through 36.365 within 120 days

after receipt of final payment under this contract or within six months of a written

request by Polk County that Contractor submit a final voucher and release, whichever

time is the lesser; then Polk County's decision shall not be final and conclusive but

the dispute shall be tried in arbitration on its merits. lf the above conditions

precedent have not been met, Contractor agrees that his non-compliance with the

conditions precedent constitutes a waiver of right to assert a claim.

ATTORNEY FEES: lf an action, suit or proceeding, including appeal therefrom, is brought for
failure to observe any terms for this contract, the prevailing party of said action is entitled

to the recovery of reasonable attorney fees.

CAPTIONS: The heading or captions in this contract are solely for convenience of the reader,

and do not have legal effect.

20

19. CHOICE OF LAW: This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oregon

2T

VENUE: Venue relating to this contract shall be in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon

for Polk County, located in Dallas, Oregon.

SEVERABILITY: lf any provision of this contract is for any reason held invalid or

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a

separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of

the remaining portions hereof.

22 CONFIDENTIALITY: Contractor understands and agrees that some records that will be made

available are or may be considered confidential under ORS 308.290 and 308.41-3. Contractor

agrees to comply with any and all confidentiality laws and regulations and will sign a

confidentiality agreement if provided by Polk County.

2023 Striping
Polk County

Contract - 5



THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES. NO WAIVER,

CONSENT, MODIFICATION OR CHANGE OF TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALT BIND EITHER PARTY

UNLESS IN WRITING AND SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. THERE ARE NO UNDERSTANDINGS,

AGREEMENTS, OR REPRESENTATION, ORAL OR WRITTEN, NOT SPECIFIED HEREIN REGARDING

THIS AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR, BY SIGNATURE BELOW, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE/SHE

HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT, UNDERSTANDS IT AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND

coNDtiloNs.

Dated this leF day of

'11- t-iq 6g
Contractor Signature Tax lD Number

Approved by the Polk County Board of Commissioners at their regular meeting on the

day of ,2023.

Chairman, Polk County Board of Commissioners

Approved as to Form

Polk County Counsel

& C

Contract - 6 2023 Striping
Polk County



Polk County

2023 Striping - Schedule A - Tabulation of Quotes

Item Description

a Mobilization

b Temporary Traffic Control, Complete

c Hi-Build, Sprayed, Surface

Total

Ackn. Addenda

% ditt.

Qtv Unit

SPECIALIZED PAVEMENT

MARKINGS, LIC

Unit Price Total

HICKS STRIPING AND

CURBING, LLC

Unit Price Total

$ 2,550.00 $

$ 8,400.00 $

$ 0.166 $

1.

t
LS

LS

$ 2,800.00 $

$ 18,500.00 $

S o.roo $

2,800

18,500

72,000

$ 93,300

YES

8s%

2,550

8,400

74,700FOOT450,000

$ 85,650

YES

0.0%

5t3t2023 1t2



Polk County

2023 Striping - Schedule B - Tabulation of Quotes

Qtv Unit

SPECIATIZED PAVEMENT

MARKINGS, LLC

Unit Price Total

HICKS STRIPING AND

CURBING, LLC

Unit Price TotalItem Description

d Mobilization

e Temporary Traffic Control, Complete

f Longitudinal Pavement Markings - Paint

Total

Ackn. Addenda

% diff .

1

I
4,g7O,OOO

$ 12,500.00

$ 147,000.00

s o.o9o

$ 12,500

$ 147,000

$ 438,300

$ 29,400.00

$ 70,000.00

$ 0.102

$ 29,400

$ 70,000

$ 496,740

LS

LS

FOOT

$ 597,800

YES

o3%

$ 596,140

o.o%

YES

5t3t2023 2t2


	PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon



